
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, March 18, 2014

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer was offered by Councillor Singh.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 7

Public Hearing - March 4, 2014
Regular Meeting - March 4, 2014

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 Bylaw No. 10917 (TA14-0002) - City of Kelowna Medical Marihuana Production
Facilities - Industrial Zones 

8 - 8

To give Bylaw No. 10917 second and third readings in order to amend City of
Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 with respect to Medical Marihuana Production
Facilities in certain Industrial Zones.

4.2 Bylaw No. 10919 (TA14-0003) - City of Kelowna Medical Marihuana Production
Facilities in Agriculture 1 Zones

9 - 9

To give Bylaw No. 10919 second and third readings in order to amend City of
Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 with respect to Medical Marihuana Production
Facilities in Agriculture 1 Zones.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.

6. Liquor License Application Reports

6.1 Liquor License Application No. LL13-0013 - 1125 Richter Street, Canrim
Packaging Ltd. (Calona Wines)

10 - 19

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to



invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
liquor license application to come forward.
This application seeks Council support to add a Special Event Area
Endorsement to the existing winery Liquor Licenses for Calona Wines.

7. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

7.1 Development Variance Permit Application DVP14-0002 - 815 Burne Avenue,
Daljit Dhami

20 - 32

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To vary the maximum permitted height for a carriage house from 4.5 m
permitted to 4.58 m proposed to facilitate the construction of a carriage house in
the rear yard of the existing single family dwelling.

7.2 Development Permit Application No. DP13-0195 and Development Variance
Permit No. DVP13-0196 - 2105 Benvoulin Court, National Society of Hope

33 - 58

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Permit for the form and character of the proposed
125 unit seniors rental housing project. To consider a Development Variance
Permit to allow (a)  5.0 storey building where 4.5 storeys is permitted; and (b)
117 parking stalls where 162 are required.

8. Reminders

9. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: February  18, 2014 

RIM No. 0930-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning and Real Estate (PMc) 

Application: LL13-0013 Owner: Canrim Packaging Ltd. 

Address: 1125 Richter St. Applicant: Calona Wines 

Subject: Liquor License Application for Special Event Area Endorsement 

Existing OCP Designation: Industrial  

Existing Zone: I4 – Central Industrial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Council directs staff to forward the following recommendation to the Provincial Liquor 
Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB): 

In accordance with Section 18 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Regulation, BE IT RESOLVED 
THAT: 

Council’s comments on the Liquor Control & Licensing Branch (LCLB)’s prescribed considerations 
for the application from at address: 1125 Richter St., Kelowna BC, (legally described as Lot A, 
Sections 30, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 30665, Except Plan M15406) for a Special Event Area 
endorsement, are as follows: 
 
a) The Winery Special Event Area is located within the building located at 1125 Richter St. in 
 the south end of the building.  There are no exterior areas proposed for the Special Event 
 Area.  
 
b) The proximity of the Special Event Area to other social or recreational facilities and public  
 buildings are as noted on the attached map.  The potential for negative impacts is 
 considered to be minimal. 
 
c) The person capacity of the Special Event Area;  

Interior overlapping retail area – 110 persons 
Interior overlapping barrel room – 79 persons 
Interior overlapping viewing area – 18 persons 
Any combination of rooms cannot exceed 110 persons 

 
d) Hours of liquor service on the Special Event Area are proposed to be 9:00 AM to 12:00 

10



LL13-0013– Page 2 

 
 

 midnight, Sunday to Saturday.  
 
e) Traffic, noise, parking and zoning:  There is minimal increase in traffic or parking 
 associated with this application.  The parking provided on site meets zoning bylaw 
 regulations for the proposed use. The use is permitted under the current I4 – Central 
 Industrial zone.  

 
f) The impact on the community if the application is approved: is not anticipated to be 
 major, as the proposed development is expected to add more options for wine 
 tour/tasting to the downtown area, and is expected to benefit other downtown tourist 
 related businesses.  Surrounding social or recreational facilities will not conflict with the 
 proposed establishment.  
 
g) Recommendation: 
 Council recommends that the application for a Special Event Areas Endorsement be 
 approved for a total 110 person capacity. 

2.0 Purpose  

This application seeks Council support to add a Special Event Area Endorsement to the existing 
winery Liquor Licenses for Calona Wines. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

The Calona Wines facility is going through a major renovation of their existing operation located 

on the subject property.  The proposed Special Event Area endorsement will allow the venue to 
hold catered events, as well as to allow flexibility in wine tastings locations within their 
operation. 
 
This endorsement is not perceived to have negative effects on the surrounding area given the 
industrial location, and would direct activity to this area of the Downtown. Potential impact on 
the surrounding community is considered minimal.  
 
In consideration of the above, the Urban Planning Department recommends support for the 
proposed license endorsement. Discussion on the LCLB’s regulatory criteria for Local Government 
comment on liquor license endorsement applications is as contained within staff’s 
recommendation at the beginning of this report. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

Calona Wines recently received a Development Permit (DP13-0142) to authorize exterior building 
renovations to facilitate a new winery retail store and tasting room adjacent to the northwest 
corner of Richter Street and Vaughan Avenue. 

4.2 Project Description 

An application for a Special Event Area endorsement has been forwarded by the licensee to the 
Provincial Liquor Control and Licensing Board (LCLB) for their approval.  Procedurally, Special 
Event Area endorsement requires local government comment prior to the LCLB making final 
decision. 

11



LL13-0013– Page 3 

 
 

As part of the recently issued Development Permit, the applicant included an area to 
accommodate a new winery retail store and tasting room.  This newly created area was planned 
to also accommodate visitors wishing to learn about the production process, as well as taste and 
purchase winery products. 

The requested endorsement will allow daily wine tasting with guests as well as ongoing tastings 
in a variety of locations, including the barrel cellar.  The applicant also proposes to offer events 
that involve occasional catered meal services for lunch or dinner which may include wine service 
by the glass.  As part of these events, these catered functions may also include culinary guests 
along with the possibility of live entertainment. 

 

 Existing License Summary Details 

Manufacturers 

Manufacturers Agent 

On Site Agent  

As a licensed winery 

Proposed 

Endorsement 

Retail area – 110 persons 
Barrel room – 79 persons 
Viewing area – 18 persons 
Any combination of rooms cannot exceed 110 persons 
(washroom fixtures) 

Special Event Area Entertainment* 

*Proposed 

Proposed Hours of Sale: 

 Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 

Open 9:00 AM 9:00 AM 9:00 AM 9:00 AM 9:00 AM 9:00 AM 9:00 AM 

Close 12:00 
midnight 

12:00 
midnight 

12:00 
midnight 

12:00 
midnight 

12:00 
midnight 

12:00 
midnight 

12:00 
midnight 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject site is located in Kelowna’s central industrial area, immediately east of the 
Downtown Urban Centre area across Richter Street. The property is comprised of a 2.5 ha parcel 
with an extensive winery operation (Calona Wines) and related buildings. The portion of the 
property proposed to be renovated and improved is located at the southwest corner of the site, 
at the northeast corner of Richter Street and Vaughan Avenue. The surrounding area is largely 
characterized by traditional industrial development. 

 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North I2 – General Industrial Industrial  

East I4 – Central Industrial Industrial 

South  I4 – Central Industrial Industrial 

West  I4 – Central Industrial Industrial 

 

  

12



LL13-0013– Page 4 

 
 

Subject Property Map:  
 

 
 

5.0 Existing Policies 

5.1 Council Policy #359 – Liquor Licensing Policy & Procedures. 

Council Policy #359 includes procedures for Special Event Area Endorsements.  The applicant met 
the spirit of these requirements. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No Comments received 

6.2 Bylaw Services 

No Concerns 

6.3 Fire Department 

No Concerns 

6.4 Interior Health Authority 

No Comments received 

6.5 RCMP 

The RCMP have no concerns regarding the applicant's request to obtain a Special Event Areas 
Endorsement. 
 

13



LL13-0013– Page 5 

 
 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: November 5, 2013  

Report prepared by: 

 
    
Paul McVey, Urban Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Manager, Urban Planning 
 

Approved for Inclusion  Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director, Community Planning and 
 Real Estate 

 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Provisional Internal Floor Plan (Occupancy Load) 
Map of nearby businesses/public facilities 
Rationale letter 

14



15



16



17



18



19



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: March 18, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AR) 

Application: DVP14-0002 Owners: 
Daljit Dhami               
Baksho Dhami 

Address: 815 Burne Avenue Applicant: Daljit Dhami 

Subject: Development Variance Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: 
S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential  
PARK – Major Park/Open Space (Public) 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0002 for Lot 
75, Section 19, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 700, located at 815 Burne Avenue, Kelowna, BC; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
Section 13.6.6(b) – RU6 Zone Development Regulations 
To vary the maximum height for accessory buildings from 4.5 m permitted to 4.58 m proposed, as 
per Schedule ‘A’; 
 
Section 9.5b.1(d) – Carriage House Regulations 
To vary the maximum permitted height for a carriage house from the lesser of 4.5 m or the 
height of the existing principal dwelling unit to 4.58 m proposed, as per Schedule ‘A’. 

2.0 Purpose  

To vary the maximum permitted height for a carriage house from 4.5 m permitted to 4.58 m 
proposed to facilitate the construction of a carriage house in the rear yard of the existing single 
family dwelling. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

Urban Planning staff is supportive of the proposed variances to the Zoning Bylaw to accommodate 
the modest additional height of 0.08 m for a proposed carriage house of 4.58 m. Measured to the 
mid-point of roof slope, the proposed carriage house would be only slightly higher than the 
existing single family dwelling on the subject site by 0.03 m.  

20



DVP14-0002 – Page 2 

 
 

The proposed carriage house conforms in all other respects to the required zoning. There will be 
adequate private outdoor space provided for both the principal dwelling and the carriage house 
on site, as well as sufficient on-site parking. The carriage house is of an attractive design and will 
complement the existing single family dwelling. Given the aforementioned, it is not anticipated 
to create an appreciably greater impact for adjacent properties.  

Given the minor nature of the proposed variance, staff has made several attempts to contact the 
designer to see whether minor amendments to the design could be made to achieve zoning 
compliance, but have been unable to make progress in this regard.  

In accordance with Council Policy 367 – Public Notification & Consultation for Development 
Applications, the applicant has undertaken efforts to contact neighbouring properties within 50 m 
of the subject site of the proposed Development Variance Permit application. To date, the file 
manager has not been contacted with any questions or concerns regarding the subject 
applications.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing to construct a 1½ storey carriage house of 72 m2 at the rear of the 
subject property, with a one car garage and living space on the main level, and two bedrooms 
and full bathroom in the half storey. The application proposes variances to Zoning Bylaw 8000 to 
permit an increase in maximum building height from 4.5 m permitted to 4.58 m proposed, a 
difference of 0.08 m. The building height of the proposed carriage house will be modestly higher 
(at 0.03 m) than the existing principal dwelling on site (as measured to the midpoint of the roof 
slope). 

As currently proposed, both units will have access to sufficient private outdoor space (min. 30 m2 
each). Additionally, adequate parking for the two dwellings will be provided on site with 
3 parking spaces (one of which provided in carriage house garage).  

Should Council support the proposed variances for building height, a Development Permit would 
be required to assess the proposed form and character of the carriage house, and would be 
executed at the staff level.  

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the south side of Burne Avenue, approximately mid-block 
between Richter Street and Ethel Street. The site and the surrounding area is presently zoned 
RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing. The neighbourhood is largely characterized by established, modest 
single family houses, many with existing carriage house development, including the east adjacent 
neighbouring property. Mill Creek is located nearby (to the north and to the east) and is 
designated as future Park. Across Burne Avenue and west of Mill Creek, the subject property is 
bordered by MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) land use designation.  

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single Family Housing & Mill Creek 

East RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single Family Housing (with Carriage House) 

South RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single Family Housing 

West RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single Family Housing 

 

21



DVP14-0002 – Page 3 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 815 Burne Avenue 

  

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

The proposed application meets the requirements of RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone as follows:   

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA PROPOSAL RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 566.92 m2 400 m2 

Lot Width 15.24 m  13 m 

Lot Depth 37.20 m 30 m 

Development Regulations 

Site Coverage (buildings) 32% 40%  

Site Coverage (buildings/parking) 40% 50% 

Carriage House (with Principal Dwelling at the front of the site) 

Height     1½ storeys / 4.58 m  1½ storeys / 4.5 m 

Distance from Principal Dwelling Approx. 6.36 m 4.5 m 

Side Yard (West)   2.0 m   2.0 m (1 - 1½ storey)  

Side Yard (East)   5.1 m   2.0 m (1 - 1½ storey) 

Rear Yard    4.2 m  1.5 m   

Lot coverage of accessory 

building 
71.7 m2  / 12.6% May not exceed 14% or 90m2 

22



DVP14-0002 – Page 4 

 
 

Zoning Analysis Table (cont.) 

CRITERIA PROPOSAL RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS 

Other Requirements 

Floor Area Ratio 
Principal dwelling: 188 m2 
Carriage House:  71.7 m2 

 38 % 

May not exceed the lesser of  
90 m2  or 75% 

Parking Stalls (#)  3 spaces 3 spaces 

Private Open Space Meets Requirements 30 m2 per dwelling 

 To vary maximum permitted height of a carriage house from 4.5 m permitted to 4.58 m proposed. 

5.0 Technical Comments 

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1. Development Cost Charges (DCCs) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any Building 
Permits; 

2. Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British Columbia Building 
Code (BCBC 12); 

3. Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Development Engineering Memorandum, dated January 28, 2014. 

5.3 Fire Department 

1. Requirements of section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BCBC 2012 are to be met.  
2. If a fence is ever constructed between the dwellings a gate with a clear width of 1100mm is 

required. Any gate is to open without special knowledge.  
3. Additional visible address is required from Burne Ave.  
4. Emergency access is from the main roadway and not the lane. 

5.4 Shaw Cable 

Owner / developer to supply and install an underground conduit system per Shaw Cable drawings 
and specifications. 

5.5 Fortis BC (Electric) 

No comments received. 

5.6 Fortis BC (Gas) 

No comments received. 

5.7 Telus 

No concerns. 

6.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:   January 7, 2014 

Summary of Public Consultation Received:  February 14, 2014    

23



DVP14-0002 – Page 5 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     

Abigail Riley, Planner II 
Urban Planning Department 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Manager, Urban Planning 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director, Community Planning &  
Real Estate  

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Building Elevations 
Site/Floor Plan 
Context/Site Photos 
Development Engineering Memorandum, dated January 28, 2014 
Draft Development Variance Permit 
 

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 3/18/2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning Department (AW) 

Application: DP13-0195 / DVP13-0196 Owner: National Society of Hope 

Address: 2105 Benvoulin Court Applicant: 
Patrick McCusker 
Architecture Inc. 

Subject: Development Permit & Development Variance Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: Multiple Unit Residential – Medium Density 

Existing Zone: RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Permit No. DP13-0195 for Lot C D.L. 128 
and 142 ODYD Plan KAP89861, located at 2105 Benvoulin Court, Kelowna B.C., subject to the 
following: 

 
1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general  

accordance with Schedule "A"; 
 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general  
accordance with Schedule “B”; 

 
3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C"; 
 
4. The applicant be required to post with the City a Landscape Performance Security deposit  

in the form of a "Letter of Credit" in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the 
landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper; 

 
5.       Registration of a plan of subdivision to subdivide the property into legal lots at the Land  

Titles Office prior to issuance of the Development Permit; 
 
AND THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted condition No. 4 within 180 
days of Council approval of the Development Permit application in order for the permit to be 
issued. 
 

33



DP13-0195 / DVP13-0196 – Page 2 

AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP13-0196 for 
Lot C D.L. 128 and 142 ODYD Plan KAP89861, located at 2105 Benvoulin Court, Kelowna, B.C.; 

 
AND FURTHER THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
 Section 13.11.6(c) – Development Regulations 

Vary the height from 4.5 storeys permitted to 5.0 storeys proposed.  
 

Table 8.1 – Parking Schedule 
Vary the required parking from 162 stalls required to 117 stalls proposed. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Development Permit for the form and character of the proposed 125 unit seniors 
rental housing project. To consider a Development Variance Permit to allow: 
 

 5.0 storey building where 4.5 storeys is permitted; 

 117 parking stalls where 162 are required; 

3.0 Urban Planning 
 
Staff are supportive of the proposal, as it is seen to meet the Official Community Plan (OCP) 
Design Guidelines and Urban Centre objectives. The subject property is located in the Midtown 
Urban Centre, within close proximity to the centre’s commercial core. Fostering the sensitive 
integration of a wide variety of housing forms is a strong civic objective and this project will 
provide an affordable form of seniors housing. Developing these vacant properties will also help 
to revitalize the area which has been underutilized since the Benvoulin Road realignment.  
 
The form and character of the proposed development, which consists of two 5 storey apartment 
buildings, will be coordinated with the design of the existing building (Phase I) and will create a 
comprehensive facility with shared amenities. The reduction in the parking is justifiable for a 
number of reasons. The housing operator has experience in providing this form of housing and is 
well aware of the parking demands of the future tenants that typically are not auto dependent, 
this has been proven with Phase I where a similar parking ratio was approved. Construction of any 
surplus parking that would go unused is a waste of resources that could be better spent on 
reducing the housing cost.  Furthermore, the location of this facility is within reach of various 
amenities (e.g. shopping, Mission Park Greenway, medical services etc.) through other modes of 
transportation (walking, cycling, transit, scooters, etc.).  In this case there appears to be good 
reason to support the parking shortfall (See applicant’s attached rationale). The height variance 
is a reasonable request as the massing actually fits within the allowable 18.0m height profile, but 
the building has been programmed to include a 5th storey. That said the height and parking ratio 
variances will not have a negative impact on the project or the neighbourhood.  
 
In summary, this project delivers on many aspects of both land use and urban design that are 
encouraged for this Urban Centre location. When the project was rezoned in 2009 Staff were 
aware that future phases would be subject to Development Permit approval and the proposed 
development is in line with those expectations. Most importantly, the project will provide seniors 
rental housing in an Urban Centre location in close proximity to transit and amenities. The 
applicant has consulted with neighbouring properties in accordance with Council Policy No. 367.  
 
 

34



DP13-0195 / DVP13-0196 – Page 3 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The Phase I Development Permit for a 5 storey apartment building was approved by Council at 
the October 9th, 2009 Regular Council meeting, it has been occupied for a few years. 

4.2 Project Description 

Phase II & III consist of two 5-storey apartment buildings with a total of 125 units; there will be 
97 – 1 bedroom units and 28 – 2 bedroom units. Parking will be provided within a 1 storey 
underground parkade and access will be from the Phase I access point from Benvoulin Court. The 
buildings are oriented towards Benvoulin Court; a large internal courtyard providing landscaped 
private open space is to be located between the two proposed buildings. All three phases of the 
project will work together to create one comprehensive development. The buildings are 
articulated with balconies, bay windows, columns and vertical design elements to help break up 
the long frontages. The large roof over-hangs add to the visual interest and provide shading and 
weather protection. The exterior materials will be a combination of stucco, vinyl and hardi 
board. These materials along with the natural colour palette add to the buildings character. (See 
applicants attached design rationale). The existing property will be subdivided in two with one 
lot facing Benvoulin Court and the other facing Benvoulin Road. 
 
Two variances are proposed as follows: 
 

 Vary the height from 4.5 storeys permitted to 5.0 storeys proposed. 

 Vary the number of parking stalls from 162 required to 117 proposed. 
 
The proposal compares to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 as follows: 
 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM5 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 1400m2 7850m2 

Lot Width 30m 91m 

Lot Depth 35m 99m 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 1.4 1.1 

Height 18.0m / 4.5 storeys 16.5m / 5 storeys¹ 

Front Yard 6.0m 6.0m 

Side Yard (south) 7.0m 7.0m 

Side Yard (north) 7.0m 7.0m 

Rear Yard 9.0m 9.0m 

Site Coverage 50% 29% 

Site Coverage – Bldg, Drive, Parking 65% 32% 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 162 stalls 117 stalls² 

Bicycle Parking 
Class I: 63 Spaces 
Class II: 13 Spaces 

Class I: 63 Spaces 
Class II: 13 Spaces 

Private Open Space 2,155m2 2,847m2 

¹ Vary the height from 4.5 storeys permitted to 5.0 storeys proposed. 

² Vary the number of parking stalls from 162 required to 117 proposed. 

 

35



DP13-0195 / DVP13-0196 – Page 4 

Subject Property Map: 2105 Benvoulin Court 

 

The subject property is located in the Midtown Urban Centre, and is designated as “Multiple Unit 
Residential – Medium Density”. The adjacent land uses are as follows: 
 

Direction Zoning Designation Land Use 

North RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing Residential 

East A1 – Agricultural 1 - ALR Agriculture 

South A1 – Agricultural 1 (Multi-family designation) Vacant 

West C4 – Urban Centre Commercial 
RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing 

Commercial 
Residential 

5.0 Current Development Policies   

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

5.1.1 Development Process (Chapter 5) - Considerations in Reviewing Development Applications 
 

Objective 5.8 Achieve high quality urban design. 
 

Streetscaping (Policy 2). Urban Centre roads should be considered as part of the public 
space and streetscaped with full amenities (i.e. sidewalks, trees and other planting, 
furniture, bike facilities, boulevards, etc.). 

 
Ensure opportunities are available for greater use of active transportation and transit 
to: improve community health; reduce greenhouse gas emissions; and increase 
resilience in the face of higher energy prices (Objective 5.10) 
 

36



DP13-0195 / DVP13-0196 – Page 5 

Maximize Pedestrian / Cycling Connectivity. Require that pedestrian and cyclist 
movement and infrastructure be addressed in the review and approval of all City and 
private sector developments, including provision of sidewalks and trails and recognition of 
frequently used connections and informal pedestrian routes.  
Transit Infrastructure. Require that transit service needs to be integrated into 
community designs and development proposals to optimize access to transit service and 
incorporate essential infrastructure on transit routes identified. 

 
5.1.2 Urban Design Development Permit Areas (Chapter 14) – Revitalization Design Guidelines 
 

Objectives 

 Use appropriate architectural features and detailing of buildings and landscapes to 
define area character; 

 Convey a strong sense of authenticity through high quality urban design that is 
distinctive of Kelowna; 

 Enhance the urban centre’s main street character in a manner consistent with the 
area’s character; 

 Provide for a scale and massing of buildings that promotes an enjoyable living, 
pedestrian, working, shopping and service experience; 

 Encourage an appropriate mix of uses and housing types and sizes; 

 Design and facilitate beautiful public open spaces that encourage year-round 
enjoyment; 

 Create open, architecturally-pleasing and accessible building facades to the street; 
and 

 Improve existing streets and sidewalks to promote alternative transportation. 
 

Guidelines 
Relationship to the Street (Objective 2.0) 

 Ensure streetwall height is proportional (0.75:1 maximum) to the width of the street 
as measured from building face to building face. Any development that exceeds this 
height must utilize a podium and step back above the streetwall; 

 Provide for public movement, street furniture, and building access zones to be 
incorporated into sidewalks adjacent to development; 

 Design buildings to occupy 100% of a property’s frontage along streets, eliminating 
elements that disrupt the streetwall such as off-street parking, dead spaces, empty 
lots, or driveways; 

 Coordinate building setbacks with adjacent sidewalks to increase the space for public 
use (i.e., utilize a building setback or building indentation as a patio space or seating 
area, incorporate corner rounding into the public realm with specialized paving 
treatment and street furniture); 

 Provide a high quality public realm consistent with the character of urban 
development (i.e. incorporate focal points/plazas, pedestrian pathways, parks and 
open space, enhanced streetscapes, and landscaping). 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s)  

 Placement permits are required for any sales or construction trailers that will be on site. 
The location(s) of these are to be shown at time of development permit application. 

37



DP13-0195 / DVP13-0196 – Page 6 

 A Building Code analysis is required for the structure at time of building permit 
applications, but the following items may affect the form and character of the building(s): 

o Hard surface paths are to be provided from the exit stairwells to the street(s) 
o Any security system that limits access to exiting needs to be addressed in the code 

analysis by the architect. 
o Access to the roof is required per NFPA and guard rails may be required and should 

be reflected in the plans if required.  
o Fire department to comment of driveway access, load requirements over the 

parkade and turn radius requirements for their vehicles. 
o The drawings indicate a covered parkade car ramp with landscaping that is not 

reflected in all the drawings . Guardrails are required from this landscaped area 
(covered roof) where the difference in elevation exceeds 600mm as per building 
code and reflected in the DP drawings.  

o Any additional retaining walls to be defined in the drawings which will require 
separate building permits. Retaining walls must be designed to be solely on the 
property unless easements have been obtained and defined on the DP drawings. 

o Building appears to project into the required setbacks, are variances being applied 
for as part of the DP 

 A Geotechnical report is required to address the sub soil conditions and site drainage. 

 Guards are required for all decks. The drawings provided don’t clearly identify these 
requirements, but will be reviewed at time of building permit application. 

 Fire resistance ratings are required for storage, janitor and/or garbage enclosure room(s). 
The drawings submitted for building permit are to clearly identify how this rating will be 
achieved and where these area(s) are located. 

 The upper floor plan may have a dead end corridor(s). An exiting analysis is required as 
part of the code analysis at time of building permit application. No cross sections were 
provided at time of DP review. 

 Size and location of all signage to be clearly defined as part of the development permit. 
This should include the signage required for the building addressing to be defined on the 
drawings per the bylaws on the permit application drawings. 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See Attached. 

6.3 Fire Department 

Fire department access, fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of 
Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. The Subdivision Bylaw requires a minimum of 150ltr/sec 
flow. The main access road to the front entrance shall be constructed as per BCBC 
3.2.5.6. A Construction Fire Safety Plan is required and shall be submitted prior to start of 
construction. Additional comments will be required with the building permit application. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: December 23rd, 2013 
Variance Rationale Received: January 30th, 2014 
Neighbourhood Consultation:  February 19th, 2014 
 
Neighbourhood consultation was conducted in accordance with Council Policy No. 367. 

38



DP13-0195 / DVP13-0196 – Page 7 

Report prepared by: 

     
Alec Warrender, Urban Planning  
 

Reviewed by:   Ryan Smith, Manager, Urban Planning 
 

Approved Inclusion:  D. Gilchrist, Community Planning & Real Estate Divisional Director 

 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan  
Elevations & Renderings 
Landscape Plan 
Applicant’s Parking Variance Rationale 
Development Engineering Requirements 
 

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 Development Permit No.:  DP13-0195 & DVP13-0196        

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA: 
 
DEVLOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT: 
 

 
RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing  
 
Revitalization Development Permit Area 
 

 Vary the height from 4.5 storeys permitted to 5.0 storeys proposed. 

 Vary the number of parking stalls from 162 required to 117 

proposed. 

 

 
ISSUED TO:         Patrick McCusker Architecture Inc. 
 
LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:        2105 Benvoulin Court 
 

 

 LOT DISTRICT LOT TWP DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: C 128 & 142  ODYD KAP89861 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for a Heritage Alteration Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits the applicant to be 
in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless specific Variances have 
been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted by virtue of drawing 
notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified as required Variances 
by the applicant or City staff. 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 
1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with 

Schedule "A"; 
 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with 
Schedule "B"; 

 
3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C"; 

 
AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 

Section 13.11.6(c)  – Development Regulations 
Vary the height from 4.5 storeys permitted to 5.0 storeys proposed.  

 
Table 8.1 – Parking Schedule 
Vary the required parking from 162 stalls required to 117 stalls proposed. 
 

56



- 2 - 
DP13-0195 & DVP13-0196 

 
 

2. The development shall commence by and in accordance with an approved Building Permit within ONE YEAR of 

the date of the Municipal Council authorization resolution. 
 
3. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and 

provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part 
hereof. 

 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of 

this Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferrable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer 

the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
3. PERFORMANCE SECURITY: 
 
 As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that 

development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.  Should any interest be 
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is 
returned.  The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the 
development hereby authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided, 
the Municipality may use the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any 
surplus shall be paid over to the Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by 
this Permit within the time set out above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee.  There is filed 
accordingly: 

 
 (a) Cash in the amount of $                 N/A                           . 
 (b) A Certified Cheque in the amount of $                  N/A                         . 
 (c) An Irrevocable Letter of Credit in the amount of $      TBD               . 
 
 Before any bond or security required under this Permit is reduced or released, the Developer will provide the 

City with a statutory declaration certifying that all labour, material, workers' compensation and other taxes 
and costs have been paid. 

 
5. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in 

support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the 
Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually 
indemnify the Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property 
owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, 
directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, 

the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any 
building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works 
or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and 
Director of Planning & Development Services. 

 
 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Land Use 
Management Departmant immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 

57



- 3 - 
DP13-0195 & DVP13-0196 

 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
 
5. APPROVALS: 
 

 
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT & DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE 18th DAY OF MARCH, 
2014. 
 

ISSUED BY THE DIVISIONAL DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND REAL ESTATE OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE __    

DAY OF MARCH, 2014. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director 
Community Planning & Real Estate 
 

58


	Agenda
	3. Minutes - March 4, 2014 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Minutes - March 4, 2014 Regular Meeting.pdf
	4.1 Bylaw No. 10917 (TA14-0002).pdf
	4.2 Bylaw No. 10919 (TA14-0003).pdf
	6.1 2014 03 18 Report LL13-0013 1125 Richter St.docx
	6.1 2014 03 18 Attachments LL13-0013 1125 Richter St.pdf
	7.1 2014 03 18 Report DVP14-0002 815 Burne Ave.docx
	7.1 2014 03 18 Attachments DVP14-0002 815 Burne Ave.pdf
	7.2 2014 03 18 Report DP13-0195 DVP13-0196.docx
	7.2 2014 03 18 Attachments DP13-0195 DVP13-0196.pdf
	7.2 DP13-0195 - Permit.doc

